
 

  
1 Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL 60069  www.lincolnshireil.gov  P: 847-883-8600  F: 847-883-8608 

 

 

AGENDA 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
Village Hall – Board Room 

Monday, July 27, 2020 
Following Regular Village Board 

 
This meeting will be conducted by audio or video conference without a quorum of the public 
body physically present because of a disaster declaration related to COVID-19 public health 
concerns affecting the Village of Lincolnshire. The Mayor determined that an in-person 
meeting at the Village Hall with all participants is not practical or prudent because of the 
disaster. 
 
PUBLIC REMOTE PARTICIPATION OPTIONS 
• View/Listen 

o Watch live on Cable Channel 10 or https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/822877093. 
o Listen live via phone 646-749-3122 (access code 822-877-093). 

o Meetings posted to www.lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-
packets-video the day after meeting. 

• Public Comment 
o Call 847-913-2312 to leave a voicemail message with your comment by 5:00 p.m. 

on Monday, July 27, 2020. For members of the public leaving voicemails, the 
voicemails must be: 
 Articulate and audibly comprehensible. 
 Inclusive of the commenter’s name, organization/agency being represented, 

address (street, city, state), phone number, and the topic or agenda item 
number the commenter is addressing. 

 No more than two minutes in length. 
 Free of any abusive or obscene language. 

o Email your comment to VOLPublicComment@lincolnshireil.gov by 5:00 p.m. on 
Monday, July 27, 2020. You may also submit a letter by dropping it off in the Village 
Hall vestibule or mailing it via the United States Postal Service. For members of the 
public submitting comment via email or letter, the written notice must be: 
 Typed or written legibly. 
 Inclusive of the commenter’s name, organization/agency being represented, 

address (street, city, state), phone number, and the topic or agenda item 
number the commenter is addressing. 

 No more than 200 words in length. 
 Free of any abusive or obscene language. 

o Comments received before the meeting will be read concurrent with respective 
agenda item. Comments may be sent to the VOLPublicComment@lincolnshireil.gov 
email address during the meeting, but it is not guaranteed they will be read until the 
end of the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1

http://www.lincolnshireil.gov/
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/822877093
http://www.lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video
http://www.lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video
mailto:VOLPublicComment@lincolnshireil.gov
mailto:VOLPublicComment@lincolnshireil.gov


Page 2 
AGENDA – Committee of the Whole 
July 27, 2020 

  
1 Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL 60069  www.lincolnshireil.gov  P: 847-883-8600  F: 847-883-8608 

 

CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.0 ROLL CALL  
2.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 

2.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 
 2.11 Preliminary Evaluation of a Text Amendment to Title 6 (Zoning), 

Chapter 14 (Administration and Enforcement) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code to Revise Regulations Regarding Administration and 
Enforcement Processes (Village of Lincolnshire)  

 
2.2 Finance and Administration 

 2.21 Consideration of Fiscal Year 2020 Mid-Year Budget and Goals Update 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

2.3 Public Works 
  
2.4 Public Safety 
 2.41 Consideration of a Resolution Approving an Agreement Pertaining to 

the Regulation of Traffic and Parking at CityPark at Lincolnshire (ECD-
Lincolnshire Association) 
 

2.5 Parks and Recreation 
2.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

  
3.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
4.0 NEW BUSINESS 
5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
6.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Reasonable accommodations / auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively 
participate in any public meetings of the Board. Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847-883-8600) 48 
hours in advance if you need special accommodations to attend. The Committee of the Whole will not proceed past 

10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the majority of the Trustees to do so. Citizens wishing to address the 
Board on agenda items may speak when the agenda item is open, prior to Board discussion. 

 

2

http://www.lincolnshireil.gov/


 

July 27, 2020 

Committee of the Whole 

2.11 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.11 Staff Memo – Page 1 of 3 

 

 

ITEM SUMMARY 

Reviewing Body / Meeting Date: Committee of the Whole – July 27, 2020 

Subject:  Zoning Code – Administration and Enforcement Text Amendment 

Action Requested: 

(Address - Petitioner) 

Preliminary Evaluation of a Text Amendment to Title 6 (Zoning), 

Chapter 14 (Administration and Enforcement) of the Lincolnshire 

Village Code to Revise Regulations regarding Administration and 

Enforcements Processes (Village of Lincolnshire) 

Prepared By: Tonya Zozulya – Planning & Development Manager  

Staff Recommendation: Referral of the Text Amendment to the Zoning Board for a Public 

Hearing 

Meeting History:  

Tentative Meeting Schedule: 

N/A 

Zoning Board – September 8, 2020 

Committee of the Whole – September 29, 2020  

Regular Village Board – October 13, 2020 

Reports/Documents Attached: 1) Draft text amendment to Title 6 (Zoning), Chapter 14 

(Administration & Enforcement) of the Lincolnshire Village 

Code  

  

Request Summary  

In 2015, the Village Board adopted comprehensive text amendments to Title 6 (Zoning), Chapter 14, 

(Administration and Enforcement). This chapter of the Village code establishes requirements for 

administering and enforcing zoning processes (e.g., variances, special uses, Planned Unit Developments, 

and text and map amendments); zoning application filing; staff and board reviews; and appeals, fees, and 

inspections. Staff has identified a number potential revisions to improve and clarify zoning administration 

and enforcement processes.  

 

Project Description 

A summary of the main amendments is listed below (please refer to attached Document 1 to view all 

redlined revisions).  

 

Section 6-14-8 - General Application Process 

Change from “Preliminary Evaluation” to “Pre-Application Meeting” 

Staff proposes changing the term “Preliminary Evaluation” to “Pre-Application Meeting” to emphasize the 

Village Board’s initial review of an applicant’s conceptual plans. The change will also modify the current 

practice of requiring an application and fees before the initial presentation to the Village Board. Instead, 

an application and fees will be collected after this step. If a proposal is not favorably received by the 

Village Board at the initial meeting, the applicant will not forgo their fees as zoning application fees are 

non-refundable. This has been a concern shared by many applicants, especially for larger projects.  

 

Public Hearing Notice Method of Delivery 

Currently, Village code requires mailed public hearing notices to be delivered by certified or registered 

mail with a return receipt requested. State law does not have such requirement for Illinois communities, 

except for the City of Chicago. Staff recommends adding first class mail as an allowable delivery method 

so applicants can decide which method to use (first class, certified, or registered). The Code already 

places the burden of proper notification on the applicant by requiring them to submit a notarized mailing 

3



 

July 27, 2020 

Committee of the Whole 

2.11 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.11 Staff Memo – Page 2 of 3 

 

 

affidavit. Additionally, the high cost ($7/certified letter) and time investment of certified/registered mail 

has been cited as a concern by applicants, coupled with the inconvenience of adjacent property owners 

being required to visit the post office to pick it up if they missed home delivery. Some communities 

require certified mail for public hearing notices (e.g., Highland Park) while others do not (e.g., Lake Bluff).  

 

Public Hearing Notification Radius  

Current Village code requires mailed notices for public hearings be provided to property owners of record 

within 250’ of the subject property. State law does not provide a specific radius requirement for Illinois 

communities, except the City of Chicago. A survey of surrounding communities shows the notification 

radius varies between 150’ and 1,000’, with the majority of communities using 250’ or less (with some 

communities expanding the distance for properties with a Special Use permit or a PUD designation).  

 

Staff recommends increasing the radius to 500’ for properties that are 3 acres or larger, while maintaining 

the current radius of 250’ for all other properties. The main benefit of expanding the radius for larger 

properties would be to provide a greater number of adjacent property owners with the opportunity to 

provide input on a zoning application given larger properties can be more impactful. The main detriment 

would be increasing an applicant’s cost of the public notice mailing for properties 3 acres or larger 

(especially if the certified/registered mail requirement remains in the Code, as described above). 

 

Application Revocation  

New language is proposed to require applicants to complete their Village approvals within one year of 

application submittal. If that does not occur, applications will be invalidated and petitioners will be 

required to file a new application, pay new application fees, and conform with current codes. Staff has 

seen several projects (e.g., U-Haul storage expansion at 200-300 Industrial Drive, Aloft hotel at 20 

Westminster Way) that have lingered in the process post consideration by the Village Board at preliminary 

evaluation for well over a year. These projects receive an initial evaluation by the Village Board and 

feedback, and then struggle to move into the formal review process with Zoning Board or Architectural 

Review Board.  In some instances, the composition of the Village Board has changed significantly from 

preliminary evaluation to current date. This requirement will ensure applicants have an incentive to keep 

progressing through the approval process and stay current with codes.  

 

Section 6-14-9 - Variances 

The code allows a select group of variances to go directly to the Zoning Board for a public hearing without 

requiring initial review by the Village Board. These “authorized variances” include: up to 25% of setback 

and lot area/width reduction; increase in the permitted distance between the subject lot and an adjacent 

lot for shared parking arrangements; shared parking spaces between uses with different hours of 

operation; and established grade height increase above the base flood elevation; and deferment of 

required parking facilities for specific period of time (note: this last authorized variance is no longer in 

effect as the code already allows minor parking deferment by administrative approval). 

 

Staff recommends the authorized variances be eliminated to require all types of variances to be evaluated 

by the Village Board before proceeding to the Zoning Board.  

 

Section 6-14-11 - Special Uses 

New language is proposed to qualify a request for a major special use amendment. If any conditions of 

approval in the original special use ordinance are proposed to be changed, the request qualifies as a major 

special use amendment.  

 

 

 

4



 

July 27, 2020 

Committee of the Whole 

2.11 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.11 Staff Memo – Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Section 6-14-12 - Planned Unit Developments (PUD) 

A new requirement is proposed regarding external agency approvals for PUDs. The current code only 

requires Lake County Stormwater Management Commission (SMC) final permits prior to final Village 

approvals. Staff recommends the revision to ensure all applicable external agency permits are provided to 

the Village before final approvals are granted.  

Additionally, a revision is proposed to state that if any material on-site or off-site changes are requested, 

the application must be evaluated as a major PUD amendment. This is to ensure the entire scope of 

potential impacts is reviewed by the Village Board.  

 

Staff Recommendation / Next Steps  

Staff seeks the Village Board’s direction regarding the draft code regulations, as well as referral to the 

Zoning Board for a public hearing and recommendation. 

 

Text amendments require a public hearing by the Zoning Board and final review/approval by the Village 

Board per Village code section 6-14-10.  

 

 

  

5



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 1 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

CHAPTER 14 
 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
SECTION: 
 
6-14-1: Administration 
6-14-2: Zoning Administrator 
6-14-3: Zoning Board 
6-14-4: Village Board of Trustees 
6-14-5: Architectural Review Board 
6-14-6: Development Review Team 
6-14-7: Letters Certificates  of Zoning Compliance 
6-14-8: General Application Process 
6-14-9: Variances 
6-14-10: Amendments 
6-14-11: Special Uses 
6-14-12: Planned Unit Developments (PUD) 
6-14-13: Appeals of Administrative Decisions 
6-14-14: Fees 
6-14-15: Inspections  
 
 
6-14-1: ADMINISTRATION  
 

This Title is hereby administered by the following: 
 
Zoning Administrator (Village Manager) 
Village Board of Trustees 
Architectural Review Board  
Zoning Board 
Development Review Team 
 
This Chapter shall first set out the authority of each of the above, and then describe the 
procedure and substantive standards with respect to the following administrative functions: 
 
Issuance of Letters Certificates of Zoning Compliance 
General Application Process 
Variancestions 
Amendments 
Special Uses 
Planned Unit Developments (PUD) 
Appeals 
Fees  
Inspections 

 
6-14-2: ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 : Shall be the Village Manager or his/her designee, and shall be responsible for the following 

duties: 
 
A. Conduct inspections to determine compliance with the terms of this Title. 

 
B. Issue violation notices requiring compliance within thirty (30) days and advising suspected 

6

tzozulya
Text Box
Document 1



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 2 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

violators of their right to appeal; and to issue citations for violations of this Title. 
 
C. Require that all construction or work of any type be stopped when such work is not in 

compliance with this Title; and revoke any permit which was unlawfully issued. 
 
D. Have possession of permanent and current records of this Title, including but not limited to, all 

applications of amendments, special uses, variationsvariances, and appeals. 
 
E. Assist in providing public information relative to this Title. 
 
F. Forward to the Zoning Board all applications for appeals, variationsvariances, special uses, 

excluding Planned Unit Developments (PUD), and amendments to this Title. 
 
G. Forward pertinent applications to the Architectural Review Board as specified in Title 2, Chapter 

3 (Architectural Review Board) of the Lincolnshire Village Code. 
 
H. Forward applications and related information to the Development Review Team in all cases 

which require development review as defined in Section 6-14-6 of this Chapter. 
 
I. Enforce all orders of the Zoning Board. (Ord. 86-885-22; Amd. Ord. 90-1138-22) 
 
6-14-3: ZONING BOARD 
 
 : The Zoning Board shall discharge the following duties under this Title:. 
 
A. Review all applications for variationsvariances from the terms of this Title, and report findings 

and recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees in the manner prescribed in Section 6-
14-9 of this Chapter. 

 
B. Review all applications for text and map amendments to this Title, and report findings and 

recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees in the manner prescribed in Section 6-14-10 
of this Chapter. 

 
C. Review all applications for special uses, excluding Planned Unit Developments (PUD), and 

report findings and recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees as prescribed in Section 
6-14-11 of this Chapter. 

 
D. Approve or disapprove applications for Minor Amendments to special uses, excluding Planned 

Unit Developments (PUD), as defined in Section 6-14-11(F)(2).  
 
E. Review all applications for appeals from any order, requirement, decision, or determination 

made by the Village, and recommend action to the Village Board of Trustees as prescribed in 
Section 6-14-13 of this Chapter. 

 
F. Receive from the Zoning Administrator and/or the Village Board of Trustees recommendations 

and inquires related to the effectiveness of this Title and report conclusions and 
recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees. 

 
G. Coordinate the provisions of this Title with that of the Official Comprehensive Plan of the 

Village. 
 

H. Receive from the Village Board of Trustees any matters not listed above, which has been referred 
to it, and report conclusions and recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees.  

 

7

https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-2/code0203.pdf
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-2/code0203.pdf


 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 3 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

6-14-4: VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 : The Village Board of Trustees shall discharge the following duties under this Chapter: 
 
A. Receive findings and recommendations from the Zoning Board, and approve or disapprove, all 

applications for amendments, special uses (excluding Planned Unit Developments) and 
variationsvariances from this Title. 

 
B. Receive recommendations from the Zoning Board or Architectural Review Board for all appeals 

filed to it.  
 
C. Receive recommendations from the Zoning Board or Architectural Review Board for all matters 

of inquiry referred to it under Section 6-14-3 or 6-14-5, respectively. 
 
D. Review all applications for special uses for Planned Unit Developments (PUD) and approve or 

disapprove.  
 
E. Receive findings and recommendations from the Architectural Review Board, and approve or 

disapprove, all proposed variationsvariances from Title 12 (Sign Control) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code, and recommendations regarding the exterior architectural design of applicable 
buildings and development. 

 
F. May from time to time adopt rules and procedures governing the conduct of any public hearings 

held before the Village Board required by this Chapter. 
 

6-14-5: ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
 
 : The Architectural Review Board (ARB) shall discharge the following duties under this Title: 
 
A. Review and make recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees regarding the exterior 

architectural design of applications for new construction of buildings and development, related 
to exterior architectural design, arrangement, building massing and scale, height and 
appearance, color and texture of exterior materials, landscaping, entrance ways, lighting, off-
street parking facilities, signage, and similar matters. The ARB shall not review plans for single-
family residential structures and structures which are accessory thereto. 

 
B. To make recommendations regarding advisable amendments to existing codes, ordinances and 

regulations of the Village. 
 
C. Approve or disapprove revisions to existing site development plan(s), including Minor 

Amendments to Special Use or Planned Unit Development (PUD), regarding exterior 
architectural design, arrangement, building massing and scale, height and appearance, color 
and texture of exterior materials, landscaping, lighting, signage, and similar elements. 

 
6-14-6: DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 
 
A. Creation: The Development Review Team shall consist of staff from the Village’s operating 

departments as well as the respective Manager or his/her designee, Director of Community and 
Economic Development or his/her designee, Director of Public Works or his/her designee, 
Village Planner, Building Official, the Chief of Police or his/her designee, and a Fire Protection 
District designee. 

 
B. Jurisdiction: Development Review Team meetings occur as neededevery third Wednesday of 

each month, but no later than 30 days after documents described in Section 6-14-6(C) are filed,  

8



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 4 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

to carry out review of preliminary or conceptual site development plans to achieve an acceptable 
development design and produce solutions to specific site problems. 

 
1. The Development Review Team shall discharge the following duties:  

 
a. Subdivision layout and design review of new residential subdivision(s) filed pursuant to 

Title 7 of the Village this Code. 
b. Review of preliminary site development plans for the construction of new structure(s) 

and major modifications to existing structures, excluding single-family residential. 
c. Site plan Rreview of special use applications required in Section 6-14-11(CB) of this Title. 
d. Review of conceptual site preliminary development plans for new Planned Unit 

Developments required in Section 6-14-12(E)(2) of this Title.  
 
2. Written review comments and recommendations from the Development Review Team will 

be issued to the Applicant within ten (10) business days from the meeting date. No final or 
binding decision shall be rendered by the Development Review Team and any comments 
and recommendations shall be deemed advisory.  A summary of the Development Review 
Team’s comments and recommendations pertinent to the findings of fact will be shared with 
the Village Board and advisory boards responsible for evaluating the application. 

 
C. Required Plans: The following plans shall be submitted to the Development Review Team for 

evaluation: 
 

1. A preliminary plan of the parcel(s) of land, drawn to scale, illustrating the proposed site 
improvements, including building footprint location(s), parking facilities, streets, internal 
service/access roads, vehicle ingress/egress, landscaping, services areas (trash enclosure, 
fire lanes, etc.), and any other pertinent amenities. 

 
2. Preliminary building elevations of all proposed structures showing actual dimensions, 

building materials and any other special building treatments, excluding single-family 
residential. 

 
3. Additional plans may be requested by the Development Review Committee deemed 

necessary to conduct a full evaluation of the development proposal. 
 
6-14-7:  LETTERS CERTIFICATES OF ZONING COMPLIANCE 
 

: The Village shall issue letters certificates of zoning compliance for the purpose of einsuring 
compliance with the regulations of this Title, including any decisions, conditions or special 
requirements resulting from the administration of this Title. Every letter certificate shall state 
the status of compliance with the provisions of this Title for any use or occupancy. 

 
A. Request for Letters Certificate of Zoning Compliance: Requests for a Letter Certificate of Zoning 

Compliance shall be submitted in compliance with the Village of Lincolnshire’s Freedom of 
Information Act Policy.  Each request must specify the parcel address(es), parcel index 
number(s) (PIN), specific zoning information being requested, and name and address of 
requestor.  

 
B. Issuance of Letter Certificate of Zoning Compliance: Letters Certificates of Zoning Compliance 

will be issued pursuant to the Village of Lincolnshire Freedom of Information Act Policy, based 
on available records. No Letter Certificate of Zoning Compliance shall be issued for any building 
or portion thereof under construction until the premises has been inspected and issued a 
Certificate of Occupancy by the Village’s Building Official.  

 

9



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 5 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

6-14-8: GENERAL APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
A. Application: An application for any request outlined in this Chapter shall be submitted upon 

forms provided by the Community and & Economic Development Department which shall 
include written consent of the property owner(s). All plans and documents shall be filed in the 
manner designated by the application; applications will not be accepted until filed in proper 
form and contain all required information. Within 30 days of the application being filed with the 
Community and & Economic Development Department and determined to be complete, such 
application shall be scheduled for a Preliminary Evaluation Pre-Application Meeting. 

 
B. Preliminary EvaluationPre-Application  Meeting: Except as otherwise described in this Chapter, as a 

condition precedent to the filing of an application, the Village Board shall evaluate the proposal on a 
preliminary or conceptual basis for initial comment prior to the filing of the application. An application 
for any new request shall first be evaluated on a preliminary basis by the Village Board of Trustees for 
initial comment prior to the holding of a public hearing. This meeting shall not be required for minor 
modifications to existing developments, as determined by the Zoning Administrator. 

C.B.  
1. Required Documentation: 

 
a. The applicant shall submit a written description of the specific request(s) and the site 

conditions and/or development goals resulting in such request.  
b. A conceptual illustrative plan shall accompany the written description showing the 

extent of the request. 
 

2. The following criteria shall be applied during in the Preliminary Evaluation Pre-Application 
Meeting Meeting:  

 
a. The written description and conceptual illustrative plan shall be reviewed with the Board 

of Trustees to provide, if any, initial comment, direct further analysis to be conducted by 
the Zoning Board, or modifications to the plan(s) for Zoning Board review. Any final 
decision must first require a recommendation incorporating findings of fact from the 
Zoning Board. 

b. Unless requested by the applicant, a maximum of one Preliminary Evaluation Pre-
Application Meeting Meeting shall be conducted for any given application. 

c. Public notification is not required for a Preliminary Evaluation Pre-Application Meeting. 
Public participation may be permitted by the Village Board of Trustee, but is not 
required. 
 

 
D.C. Notice of Public Hearing: 
 

1. Publication of Notice: Notice of the date, time, and place, common address and Property 
Index Number(s) (P.I.N.) of the parcel(s) involved in the application, and a description of 
the relief or entitlements requested action(s) of the public hearingby the applicantion shall 
be published by the Village of Lincolnshire at least once in a newspaper of general 
circulation within the Village not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days 
before such public hearing. 

 
2. Written Notice: Except for text amendment applications, Tthe applicant shall provide 

written notice to all persons to whom the current real estate tax bills are sent, as shown on 
the records of the Vernon Township Assessor's office or the Lake County Chief County 
Assessor’s Office as follows: 

 
a. For all lots or any part of which lie within two hundred and fifty feet (250') of the 

10



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 6 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

property lines of the lot for which an application has been filed, except lots that are three 
(3) acres or larger shall provide written notice within five hundred feet (500’) of their 
property lines. 

 
b. Written notices shall give the date, time, and place, case number, if any, assigned to the 

application, common address and Property Index Number(s) (P.I.N.) of the parcel(s) 
involved in the application, and a description of the relief or entitlements requested 
action(s) of the public hearingby the applicant. All such notice must be sent no more 
than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days in advance of the public hearing. 

 
c. Notices may be shall be sent by first class, certified, or registered mail, return receipt 

requested. The applicant shall file a sworn affidavit containing a complete list of the 
names, last known addresses of all property owners entitled to notice and served, and 
one copy of the notice with the Community and & Economic Development Department 
not less than four (4) days in advance of the public hearing, exclusive of the date of the 
hearing itself. 

 
E. Action by the Zoning Board: Subject to the notice requirements in paragraph C, the Zoning Board shall 

hold a public hearing no later than sixty (60) days after receiving a complete application to 
consider the application and make findings of fact in accordance with the standards hereinafter 
prescribed. Recommendations of the Zoning Board for approval, approval with conditions, or 
denial shall be forwarded to the Village Board of Trustees incorporating the Zoning Board 
findings of fact for final action. Any application must receive the approval of four (4) members 
of the Zoning Board to be deemed an approval recommendation. Action by the Zoning Board 
shall follow the provisions set forth in Title 2, Chapter 6 (Zoning Board) of the Village Code. 

F.D.  
G.E. Action by the Architectural Review Board: No later than sixty (60) days after receiving a 

complete application the Preliminary Evaluation Meeting, the Architectural Review Board shall 
convene a meeting to consider the application and make recommendations to the Village Board 
of Trustees regarding the exterior architectural design of all applicable buildings and 
development. Action by the Architectural Review Board shall follow the provisions set forth in 
Title 2, Chapter 3 (Architectural Review Board) of the Village Code. Any application must 
receive the approval of four (4) members of the Architectural Review Board to be deemed an 
approval recommendation. 

 
H.F. Action by the Village Board of Trustees: 
 

1. Recommendations of the Zoning Board for approval, approval with conditions, or denial 
shall be forwarded to the Board of Trustees incorporating the Zoning Board findings of fact 
for final action. 

 
2. Recommendations of the Architectural Review Board for approval, approval with conditions, 

or denial shall be forwarded to the Board of Trustees incorporating the Architectural Review 
Board recommendation(s) for final action. 

 
3. The Village Board of Trustees shall act upon the recommendation of the Zoning Board 

and/or Architectural Review Board within not more than sixty (60) days from the last date 
of theeither advisory body votes on an application. Without further public hearing, the 
Village Board of Trustees shall approve (or approve with conditions) by ordinance, deny the 
application, or refer it back to the appropriate advisory board for further consideration. An 
application which fails to receive an approval recommendation of the Zoning 
Board/Architectural Review Board must receive a favorable vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all 
the elected members of the Village Board of Trustees to be approved. An application which 
receives the approval recommendation of the Zoning Board/Architectural Review Board 

11

https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-2/code0206.pdf
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-2/code0203.pdf


 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 7 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

may be denied by a majority vote of the Village Board of Trustees. 
 

4. The ordinance authorizing the application shall contain a specific description of the 
requestrelief or entitlements granted, along with any conditions and restrictions, or 
appropriate guarantees upon the establishment, location, and construction of the request as 
is deemed necessary for the protection of the public interest and to secure compliance with 
the standards and requirements specified herein. 

 
G. Condition of All Applications and Approvals:  Any application filed pursuant to this Chapter 

shall not be considered complete unless and until all fees and deposits due pursuant to 
Comprehensive Fee Schedule have been paid. Any approval granted pursuant to this Chapter 
shall, whether or not expressly so conditioned, be deemed to be conditioned upon payment of 
fees as required by Section 6-14-14. The failure to fully pay any such fee or deposit upon request 
shall be grounds for tolling any deadlines, rejection in processing an application and for denying 
or revoking any approval sought or issued with respect to the land or development to which the 
unpaid fee or deposit relates. 
 

H. Revocation: An application shall become null and void if, by reason of the applicant’s delay, final 
action cannot be completed by an applicable Village body within one (1) year from the date of 
the application filing. Upon request by the applicant, a one-time extension may be granted by 
the Village Board of Trustees without a public hearing. Upon the expiration of the application, a 
new Pre-Application Meeting and a new application and fees shall be required in compliance 
with village codes in effect at the time of the new application filing.  
 

6-14-9: VARIANCES 
 
A. Purpose: A variance authorizes a relaxation of the terms of this Title where such relaxation will 

not be contrary to the public interest and where, due to practical difficulties on the property, a 
literal enforcement of the Code would result in unnecessary hardship. The Zoning Board may 
recommend a variance from the regulations of this Title to the Board of Trustees consistent with 
the general purpose and intent of this Title. The Board of Trustees shall make all final decisions 
on variance requests. 

 
B. Process: Except as described in subparagraph D, Tthe application process outlined in Section 6-

14-8 of this Chapter shall apply.  
 
C. Findings of Fact: The Zoning Board shall not recommend a variance from the regulations of this 

Title unless it shall make findings based upon the evidence presented to it in each specific case 
the proposed variance meets each and every one of the following standards: 

 
1. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the 

specific property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished 
from a mere inconvenience if the strict letter of the regulations were to be carried out; 

 
2. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under 

the conditions allowed by the regulations governing the zoning district in which it is located; 
 

3. The conditions upon which an application for a variance is based are unique to the property 
for which the variance is sought, and are not applicable, generally, to other property within 
the same zoning classification; 

 
4. The alleged difficulty or hardship is not based primarily upon a desire by any persons 

presently having an interest in the property or to increase financial gain; 
 

12



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 8 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

5. The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; 

 
6. The granting of the variance will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood or 

locality; 
 
7. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 

property or substantially increase the congestion of the public streets, or increase the danger 
of fire, or impair natural drainage or create drainage problems on adjacent properties, or 
endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood; 

 
8. The proposed variance is consistent with the official Comprehensive Plan of the Village and 

other development codes of the Village. 
 

The Zoning Board may recommend and the Village Board of Trustees may impose such 
conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefitted by a variance as may be necessary 
to comply with the standards established in this Section and the objectives of this Title. 

 
D. Authorized Variations: Due to their minor nature, an application for the following variations 

shall not require a Preliminary Evaluation as outlined in Section 6-14-8(B), and shall advance 
directly to Public Hearing by the Zoning Board: 

 
1. Reduction in the Setback required by the applicable zoning regulations of not more than 

25%. 
 
2. Reduction of the Lot Area or Lot Width required by the applicable zoning regulations of not 

more than 25%. 
 
3. To permit the same off-street parking space(s) to qualify as space(s) for two (2) or more 

separate uses required by Section 6-11-3(A)(5) of this Title, provided that use of such parking 
space(s) for each user does not occur at approximately the same hours of the same days of 
the week. 

 
4. To increase the maximum distance parking spaces are permitted to be located from the use 

served by not more than fifty percent (50%), as required by 6-11-3(A)(2) of this Title. 
 

5. To permit the deferment of required parking facilities for a specified period of time. 
 
6. To permit an increase in established grade from which Building Height is measured a 

maximum of 2.5 feet above the base floodplain elevation (BFE), provided the Buildable Area 
of the subject parcel has an elevation below the BFE. 

 
An application for variance from the regulations of this Title not contained in this Subsection 
(above) may be considered by the Zoning Board at a public hearing, only after evaluated at 
Preliminary Evaluation Meeting by the Village Board of Trustees, as outlined in Section 6-
14-8(B). 

 
E.D. Revocation: Where a variance has been granted pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter, such 

approval shall become null and void unless construction thereon is substantially under way 
within one (1) year from ordinance approval, unless a one-time extension is granted by the 
Village Board of Trustees without an additional public hearing.  

 
6-14-10: AMENDMENTS (MAP AND TEXT) 

13



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 9 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

 
A. Purpose: For the purpose of ensuring that the taxable value of land and buildings throughout 

the municipality may be conserved; congestion in the public streets may be lessened or avoided; 
the public health, safety, comfort, morals, and welfare may otherwise be promoted; and to 
ensure and facilitate the preservation of sites, areas, and structures of historical, architectural 
and aesthetic importance, the Village Board of Trustees may, in the manner hereinafter set 
forth, amend the regulations imposed in the districts created by this Title or amend district 
boundary lines. Due allowances shall be made for existing conditions, the policies, standards, 
and principles of the Comprehensive Plan of the Village,  the conservation of property values, 
the direction of building development to the best advantage of the entire community, and the 
uses to which property is devoted at the time of the adoption of such amendatory ordinance. 

 
B. Process: The application process outlined in Section 6-14-8 of this Chapter shall apply.  
 
C. Findings of Fact - Text Amendment: At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Zoning Board 

shall submit written recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees. Where the purpose and 
effect of the proposed amendment is not to change the zoning classification of particular 
property, the Zoning Board shall make findings based upon the evidence presented to it in each 
specific case with respect to, but not limited to, the following standards.  

 
1. The request for an amendment shall serve the purpose of promoting the public health, 

safety, and general welfare. 
 

2. The request for an amendment shall conserve the value of property throughout the 
community. 

 
3. The request for an amendment shall lessen or avoid congestion in the public streets and 

highways. 
 

D. Findings of Fact - Map Amendment (Rezoning): At the conclusion of the public hearing, the 
Zoning Board shall submit written recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees. The 
Zoning Board may recommend the adoption of an amendment changing the zoning 
classification of the property in question to any higher classification than that requested by the 
applicant. For the purpose of this paragraph, the R-1 District shall be considered the highest 
classification and the M-1 District shall be considered the lowest classification. The Zoning 
Board shall not recommend the adoption of a proposed amendment if it finds that the adoption 
of such amendment is detrimental to the public interest, based on the following standards: 

 
1. Existing zoning classification of the property. 
 
2. Existing uses of property and existing physical, social or economic factors within the general 

area of the property in question. 
 
3. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the property in question. 
 
4. The suitability of the property in question to the uses permitted under the existing or 

proposed zoning classification. 
 
5. The trend of development, if any, in the general area of the property in question, including 

changes, if any, which have taken place in its present zoning classification. 
 
6. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned. 
 
7. The extent to which the property’s values is diminished by the existing zoning classification. 

14



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 10 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

 
8. The impact upon the objectives of the official Comprehensive Plan of the Village, as 

amended. 
 
E. Denial of Amendment: Any application for an amendment which has been denied by the Village 

Board of Trustees shall not be resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of the denial, 
except on the grounds of new evidence or proof of change of conditions.   

 
6-14-11: SPECIAL USES 
 
A. Purpose: The development and execution of this Title is based upon the division of the 

community into zoning districts within which the use of land, buildings and their bulk and 
location in relation to the land are substantially uniform. It is recognized, however, there are 
certain uses because of their unique characteristics, requires consideration, in each case, of the 
impact of those uses upon neighboring land and of the public need for the particular use in the 
particular location. Such special uses fall into two (2) categories: 

 
1. Uses publicly operated or associated with a public interest, and 
 
2. Uses entirely private in character, but of a unique nature that their operation may give rise 

to unique problems with respect to their impact upon neighboring property. 
 
B. Process: The application process outlined in Section 6-14-8 of this Chapter shall apply. 
 
C. Development Review Team: A meeting of the Development Review Team shall be conducted to 

carry out review of all new applications for a special use prior to the holding of a public hearing 
with the Zoning Board, as outlined in Section 6-14-6 of this Chapter. 

 
D. Findings of Fact: At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Zoning Board shall make findings 

based upon the evidence presented to it and submit written recommendations to the Village 
Board of Trustees. No special use shall be recommended by the Zoning Board, unless it shall 
find that each and every one of the following standards are met: 

 
1. The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity of the subject premises for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the neighborhood in which it is to 
be located. 

 
2. The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development 

and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
 

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or will be 
provided. 

 
4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as 

to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 
5. The proposed special use is not contrary to the objectives of the Official Comprehensive Plan 

of the Village as amended. 
 
6. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the 

district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be varied 
pursuant to Section 6-14-9 of this Chapter. 

 

15



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 11 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

E. Denial of Special Use: Any application for a special use, which has been denied wholly or in part 
by the Village Board of Trustees, shall not be resubmitted for a period of one year from the date 
of said denial, except on the grounds of new evidence or proof of change of conditions. 

 
F. Amendments to Special Uses: A special use shall be implemented only in strict adherence to the 

authorizing ordinance, along with any conditions and restrictions, or appropriate guarantees 
upon the establishment, location, and construction of the application, which shall be binding on 
the applicants, their successors, grantees and assigns. Any request to amend an approved special 
use shall be subject to the following: 

 
1. Major Amendments: Major amendments are classified as any change not categorized as a 

Minor Amendment, and shall be subject to the requirements of Section 6-14-8. 
 
2. Minor Amendments: Minor amendments are classified as any change which does not 

request changes from conditions of approval expressed in the original special use ordinance, 
substantially alter the nature of the approved use(s), increase the intensity of the approved 
use(s), or substantially increase the scale of structures or site improvements associated with 
the approved special use(s). Upon the submission of a new application for a minor 
amendment, the Zoning Board and/or Architectural Review Board may approve, without the 
holding of a public hearing, minor amendments.  

 
G. Revocation: Where a special use has been granted pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter, 

such approval shall become null and void unless construction thereon is substantially under way 
within three (3) years of the date of granting, unless a one-time extension is granted by the 
Village Board of Trustees without an additional hearing. 

 
6-14-12: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS lanned Unit Developments (PUD) 
 
A. Purpose and Description: While a Planned Unit Development (PUD) is a special use, this 

Section provides a special mechanism to accommodate development which is in the public 
interest and would not otherwise be permitted pursuant to this Title. These provisions are also 
intended to provide an opportunity to accommodate developments that involve one or more 
uses and may be located in more than one zoning district. 

 
It is anticipated that planned unit developments will offer one or more of the following 
advantages:  

 
1. Designs which reflect the historic open character of single-family areas of the Village.  
2. Designs which provide substantial buffers and transitions between areas of different land 

use or development densities.  
3. Designs which enhance the appearance of neighborhoods by conserving streams, areas of 

natural beauty, and natural green spaces. 
4. Designs which counteract possible urban monotony and congestion in streets.  
5. Designs which promote compatible architecture between adjacent buildings. 
6. Designs which will buffer differing types of land use and intensities of development from 

each other so as to minimize any adverse impact which new development may have on 
existing or zoned development. 
 

B. Intent: A planned unit development is of substantially different character than other uses 
described in this Title. Planned unit developments allow for far more flexibility than those 
pertaining to other land uses and allows for uses which may not otherwise be identified in this 
Title. The maximum use of zoning exceptions for planned developments will not automatically 
be granted by the Village Board of Trustees; rather the intent is to grant only such exceptions 
adjustments or uses which create a balance with the benefits accruing to the Village as a result of 

16



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 12 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

the planned unit development. Therefore, the Village Board of Trustees may, as a condition of 
approval, require any reasonable condition, limitation, or design factor which will promote 
proper development of a planned unit development. 

 
The planned unit development provisions of this Chapter are intended to provide the following: 

 
1. A choice in the type of environment available to the public by allowing development that 

would not be possible under the strict application of other sections of this Title. 
 
2. Creation and/or permanent reservation of open space, recreational areas and facilities. 
 
3. A land use plan which permits preservation of green space, natural vegetation, topographic 

and geological features, and historic resources. 
 
4. A creative approach to the use of land and related physical facilities which results in better 

urban design, higher quality construction and the provision of aesthetic amenities. 
 
5. The efficient use of land, so as to promote economies in the provision of utilities, streets, 

schools, public grounds and buildings, and other facilities. 
 
6. Innovations in development so the growing needs and demands of the population may be 

met by a greater variety in land uses, building type, design, and layout, and by conservation 
and more efficient use of open space ancillary to such development, all in a manner 
consistent with the character of the zoning district in which the planned unit development is 
located. 

 
7. A land use which promotes the public health, safety, comfort, morals and welfare. 

 
C. Minimum Area for Planned Unit Development: A minimum gross area of three (3) acres is 

required of each site for a planned unit development, except in the R-4, R-5, B, and E Zoning 
Districts, where there shall be no minimum size requirement. 

 
D. Application: A planned unit development shall be granted as a special use in permissible zoning 

districts and in accordance with the procedures and standards set forth in this Section. To the 
extent the procedures and standards set forth in this Section conflict with other sections of the 
Village Code, this Section shall apply, except that all required improvements, construction 
standards, design standards and all other engineering standards contained within the Village's 
Subdivision and Land Development regulations of Title 7 must be complied with, except where 
specifically varied through the provisions of this Section. 

 
1. Application: Applications shall be made on forms provided by the Community and & 

Economic Development Department and shall be filed as outlined in Section 6-14-8(A) of 
this Chapter. 

 
2. Joint Request: If any additional application pursuant to this Title is filed in conjunction with 

a planned unit development, the applications shall be processed concurrently; however all 
applicable public hearings shall be convened by the Village Board of Trustees, which shall 
consider the joint requests prior to consideration of the planned unit development 
application. 

 
3. Optional Pre-Application Conference: Prior to filing an application for a planned unit 

development, the applicant may request a pre-application conference with the Zoning 
Administrator or his/her designee. The purpose of such a conference is to allow the Zoning 
Administrator to inform the applicant of all applicable ordinances, rules, regulations, plans, 

17



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 13 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

policies, standards, and procedures which may affect the proposed development, or the 
consideration of said development by the Village Board of Trustees. Such conference also 
allows the applicant to present a general concept of the proposed development prior to the 
preparation of detailed plans. No final or binding action shall be taken at a pre-application 
conference and any views expressed shall be deemed to be only preliminary and advisory. 

 
E.  Preliminary Development Plan: The Preliminary Development Plan of the planned unit 

development is intended to provide the basic scope, character, and nature of the entire proposed 
planned unit development. The Preliminary Development Plan is the basis on which the 
required public hearing is held, enabling public consideration of the proposal at the earliest 
possible stage. 

 
1. Preliminary Evaluation Pre-Application Meeting Meeting: An application for a planned unit 

development shall be first evaluated at a Preliminary Evaluation Pre-Application Meeting by 
the Village Board of Trustees for initial review prior to any further action, and shall include 
the following plans and documents:  

 

 A detailed explanation of the character of the planned unit development and the reasons 
why it has been planned to take advantage of the flexibility of these regulations. This 
item shall include a specific explanation of how the proposed land use(s) and how the 
proposed planned unit development meets the objectives of all official plans which affect 
the parcel(s) in question. 

 

 A location map. 
 

 An accurate legal description of the entire area under immediate development within the 
planned unit development. 

 

 Conceptual design plans regarding land use, dwelling type, density, building 
architecture, street and lot arrangement and preliminary lot sizes. 

 

 Tentative proposals regarding surface drainage and stormwater management facilities. 
 

 Statement of present and proposed ownership of all land within the project including the 
beneficial owners of any land trust in accordance with Section 1-12-1 of the Village Code. 

 
2. Development Review Team: Following the application filing, a Preliminary Evaluation , a 

meeting of the Development Review Team shall be conducted pursuant to Section 6-14-6 to 
carry out review of Preliminary Development Plans prior to consideration by the advisory 
boards the Architectural Review Board. Copies of the Preliminary Development Plan for all 
new residential developments shall be made available to any school district, library district, 
and fire protection district which might be affected by the development. The Zoning 
Administrator shall notify any such district concerning the filing of said documents. 

 
The Preliminary Development Plan and supporting data shall include the following: 

 
a. Site Plan: A site plan of the planned unit development shall be drawn to an engineer’s 

scale ratio and shall include the following:  
 
i. General location and purpose of each building, other than detached single-family 

residences on individually platted lots. 
ii. All proposed streets (public and private), required yards, common open space, 

recreation facilities, parking areas, service areas, and other facilities to indicate 
the character of the proposed development. 

18



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 14 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

iii. Existing Easements: Location, width and purpose of all existing platted and 
recorded easements. 

iv. Conditions on Adjoining Land: Direction and gradient of ground slope, including 
any embankments or retaining walls; character and location of major buildings, 
easements, railroads, power lines, towers and other nearby land uses or adverse 
influences. 

v. Streets: Existing streets adjacent to the tract, including street names, right-of-
way widths, existing or proposed center lines, pavement type, walks, curbs, 
gutters, culverts, etc. 

vi. Utilities: Identify utilities on and adjacent to the tract; location and size of 
sanitary and storm sewers; location and size of water mains; location of fire 
hydrants and street lights 

vii. Topography: Ground elevations on the tract and on the first fifty (50) feet of all 
adjacent tracts of land showing one (1) foot contours for land which slopes less 
than one-half (1/2) percent along with all breaks in grades, at all drainage 
channels or swales, and at selected points not more than one hundred (100) feet 
apart in all directions. For land that slopes more than one-half (1/2) percent, two 
(2) foot contours shall be provided. Any land within the one hundred (100) year 
floodplain shall be shown. 

viii. Soil Conditions: Subsurface conditions on the tract, if required by the Village 
Engineer, shall be tested  to ascertain subsurface soil, rock and groundwater 
conditions, depth to groundwater, unless test pits are dry at a depth of five (5) 
feet  

ix. Natural Features: Watercourses, marshes, wooded areas, and other significant 
environmental features. 

x. Open Space: All parcels of land intended to be dedicated for public use or 
reserved for the use of all property owners with the purpose indicated. 

 
b. Preliminary Building Elevations: Architectural elevation plans of all proposed 

structures identifying actual dimensions, building materials and any other special 
building treatments. 

 
c. Preliminary Landscape Plan: A landscape plan of the entire planned unit 

development and detailed plans of landscaping for a typical building area. 
 
d. Density: Information of residential uses, including dwelling units per gross acre, 

dwelling units per net acre; the number of dwelling units by type, and the number of 
bedrooms in each dwelling unit type. Information should be provided for each unit in 
the planned unit development. 

 
e. Site Data: Tabulations on each separate unsubdivided use area, including land area, 

number of buildings, and number of dwelling units per acre. Nonresidential intensity 
information on the type and amount of nonresidential uses including building 
locations, sizes, floor area ratio, building height, the amount and location of common 
open space. 

 
f. Preliminary Subdivision Plat: A preliminary subdivision plat for all subdivided lands 

included in the planned unit development and meeting all the requirements of a 
subdivision plat in accordance with Title 7 of the Lincolnshire Village Code, except 
those aspects that vary from the subdivision regulations. 

 
g. Cost-Revenue Analysis: If requested by the Zoning Administrator, a study shall be 

prepared by the applicant’s expense, indicating the fiscal impact of the planned unit 
development on major taxing districts limited to, the sanitary treatment facilities, 

19



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 15 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

school district(s), fire protection district(s), library district(s), and the park network. 
Information shall include detailed estimates on expected population of the 
development; the operating cost to be incurred by each taxing body; any additional 
major capital investments required, in part or in whole, because of the planned unit 
development; and revenue generated for each taxing body by the planned unit 
development to offset fiscal impacts created by the planned unit development. The 
study should include a cash flow analysis based on the proposed staging of the 
planned unit development. 

 
h. Traffic Analysis: If requested by the Zoning Administrator, a study shall be prepared 

by the applicant’s expense, analyzing the impact caused by the planned unit 
development on the street and highway systems. 

 
i. Environmental Analysis: If requested by the Zoning Administrator, a study of the 

major environmental impacts of the planned unit development on the environment 
shall be prepared by the applicant’s expense, analyzing and disclosing all 
environmental impacts of the proposed planned unit development. Generally, such 
impacts would include effects on discrete ecosystems; any deterioration in the 
surface water quality; and effect on sensitive land areas as identified by the 
Development Review Team from time to time, such as floodplains, wetlands, forests, 
aquifer recharge areas, historic buildings or structures, prairie landscapes, and 
mineral resource reserves. 

 
j. Zoning Exceptions: Identification and explanation of those aspects of the proposed 

planned unit development that vary from the Zoning Ordinance requirements 
applicable to the underlying zoning district and from the subdivision regulations of 
the Village. 

 
k. Additional plans or documents as may be required by the Development Review Team 

necessary to conduct a full evaluation of the planned unit development. 
 

3. Architectural Review Board: Prior to any public hearing at the Village Board, the 
Architectural Review Board shall review the Preliminary Development Plans and make 
recommendations to the Village Board of Trustees regarding the exterior architectural 
design of all primary buildings, with the exception of all detached single-family 
residential housing, clearly depicting the exterior architectural design, arrangement, 
building massing and scale, height and appearance, color and texture of exterior 
materials; site development design; landscaping; lighting; off-street parking facilities; 
signage; and site fixtures. 

 
4. Action by the Village Board of Trustees: 

 
a. The Village Board shall hold a public hearing in accordance with Section 6-14-8(c) 

and make findings of fact in accordance with standards hereinafter prescribed, 
Architectural Review Board findings and recommendation, and other supporting 
data. 

 
b. Findings of Fact: The Preliminary Development Plans may be approved by the 

Village Board of Trustees if it can make findings of fact related to the specific 
proposal set forth with particularity, describing in what respects the proposal would 
be in the public interest, based on the following: 

 
i. The proposed plan is consistent with the stated purpose of the planned unit 

development regulations. 

20



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 16 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

 
ii. The proposed plan meets the requirements and standards of the planned unit 

development regulations. 
 

iii. The proposed plan departs from the zoning and subdivision regulations 
otherwise applicable to the subject property, including but not limited to, the 
density, dimensions, area, bulk, use, required improvement, construction and 
design standards and the reasons why such departures are deemed to be in the 
public interest. 

 
iv. The public benefit produced by the planned unit development outweighs the 

increased burden(s) on public services and infrastructure. Any specific beneficial 
actions, plans or programs agreed to in the planned unit development proposal 
which are clearly beyond the minimum requirements of the Zoning Code shall be 
specifically listed as evidence of justified bulk premiums and/or use exception. 

 
v. The physical design of the proposed plan makes adequate provisions for public 

services, provides adequate control over vehicular traffic, provides for and 
protects designated common open space, and further the amenities of light and 
air, recreation and visual enjoyment. 

 
vi. The beneficial relationship and compatibility of the proposed plan to the adjacent 

properties and neighborhood. 
 

vii. The desirability of the proposed plan to the Village's physical development, tax 
base and economic well-being. 

 
viii. The conformity with the recommendations of the Official Comprehensive Plan, as 

amended, and all other official plans and planning policies of the Village. 
 

c. Modifications, Conditions, Exceptions, Restrictions: Upon approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan, the Village Board may require modifications, or make grant 
conditions, modifications, bonuses and grant exceptions, if any, and impose restrictions 
upon the establishment, location, construction, maintenance, and operation to the plan 
as deemed necessary for the protection of the public interest and to secure compliance 
with the findings and requirements specified herein. 

 
i. Use Exceptions: The Village Board of Trustees may authorize specified uses not 

permitted by the use regulations of the zoning district(s) in which the planned 
unit development is located, provided that: 

 

 The uses permitted by such exception are necessary or desirable and are 
appropriate with respect to the primary purpose and character of the planned 
unit development. 

 

 The uses permitted by such exception will not exercise a detrimental 
influence on the neighborhoods surrounding the planned unit development, 
or upon the internal character of any part or all of the planned unit 
development itself. 

 
ii. Bulk Regulations: The Village Board of Trustees may authorize exceptions from 

to the applicable bulk regulations of the Zoning Code within the boundaries of 
such planned unit development, provided that: 

 

21



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 17 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

 Such exception shall be solely for the purpose of promoting an integrated site 
plan no less beneficial to the residents or occupants of such development as 
well as the neighboring property, than would be obtained under the bulk 
regulations of the Zoning Code for buildings developed on separate zoning 
lots. 

 

 The overall floor area ratio for the planned unit development would not 
exceed more than ten percent (10%) the maximum floor area ratio which 
would be determined on the basis of the floor area ratio required for the 
individual uses in such planned unit developments, as stipulated in each 
zoning district. 

 

 Along the periphery of the planned unit development, required front, side and 
rear yards may be provided as required by the zoning district in which said 
development is located. 

 
 III.  Sign Exceptions: The Village Board may authorize exceptions from Sign Code 

regulations.  Where applicable, such exceptions will be memorialized as part of 
the Master Sign Plan described in Title 12, Chapter 5 of the Village Code. 

 
5. Acceptance of the Preliminary Development Plan: The Preliminary Development Plan shall 

be deemed only an expression of acceptance of the concepts and details, and serve as a 
specific guide to the preparation of the Final Development Plan which is required of the 
application for a planned unit development. Further, it indicates acceptance of the 
commitment by the applicant to the details set forth in the application. Acceptance of the 
Preliminary Development Plan shall be null and void if a Final Development Plan 
application is not submitted within one year from the date of the Preliminary Development 
Plan approval, unless a one-time  extension is granted by the Village Board of Trustees 
without a public hearing. 

 
a. Record of Acceptance: An ordinance granting acceptance of the Preliminary 

Development Plan for the planned unit development shall be prepared and contain a 
specific description of the special use, along with any conditions applied, modifications, 
exception and bonuses granted, if any, and the findings of fact of the Village Board of 
Trustees. 

 
b. Building Permits: No permits for construction shall be issued for the planned unit 

development until the Final Development Plan has been filed, approved, and recorded 
with the County Recorder, as provided in Subsection F.  

 
F. Final Development Plan: The Final Development Plan of a planned unit development shall be 

prepared to designate the land lots as well as the division of other lands, not so subdivided, into 
common open space areas and building areas, and shall show the exact location of each 
structure to be constructed to designate specific internal uses of each structure and parcel of the 
land. The Final Development Plan shall detail the restrictions placed upon the land and serves 
as a zoning control device. 

 
1. Procedure: Within one year from the date of approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, 

the Final Development Plan and supporting data shall be filed with the Zoning 
Administrator for certification the Final Development Plan is in substantial conformity to 
the approved Preliminary Development Plan. The Final Development Plan shall conform 
substantially to the Preliminary Development Plan as approved. If requested by the 
applicant, the Final Development Plan may be submitted in development phases, with each 
phase representing a unit of the approved Preliminary Development Plan to be developed; 

22



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 18 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

provided, however, that such unit conforms to all requirements of these regulations.  
 
2. Final Development Plans: The Final Development Plan of the planned unit development 

shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
 

a. An accurate legal description of the entire area under immediate development within the 
planned unit development. 

 
b. Density information of residential uses, including dwelling units per gross acre and 

dwelling units per net acre; the number of dwelling units by type, and the number of 
bedrooms in each dwelling unit type. Information should be provided for each unit in the 
planned unit development. 

 
c. Site Plan illustrating  the exact location of all structures to be constructed and the 

specific internal land uses for each building, including all proposed streets (public and 
private), required yards, common open space, recreation facilities, off-street parking 
areas, service areas, and other facilities to indicate the character of the proposed 
development. 

 
d. Tabulations on each separate unsubdivided use area, including land area, number of 

buildings, number of dwelling units per acre. Nonresidential intensity information on 
the type and amount of nonresidential uses including building locations, sizes, floor area 
ratio, building height, the amount and location of common open space. 

 
e. Architectural Plans of all primary buildings clearly depicting the final exterior 

architectural design, arrangement, building massing and scale, height and appearance, 
color and texture of exterior materials, lighting, signage and site fixtures, as 
recommended by the Architectural Review Board. 

 
f. Landscape Plan for each phase of the planned unit development seeking final approval 

and detailed plans of landscaping for a typical building area. 
 
g. Final improvement plans in accordance with Section 7-3-3(A) of the Lincolnshire Village 

Code including construction details for all roads and off-street parking facilities; 
classification, width of right of way, width of pavement, and construction details; 
sidewalks and paths; sanitary sewers; stormwater drainage facilities; water supply 
system;  and street lighting Furnished for each building. 

 
h. Authorization from Lake County Stormwater Management Commission and other 

external agencies, if applicable, affirming the planned unit development and the design 
of all improvements is in accordance with the Lake County Watershed Development 
Ordinance (WDO) and external agency requirements, as amended, except where specific 
exemptions may be authorized. 

 
i. Development schedule indicating the phases in which project will be built; if more than 

one construction phase will occur, identifying the phase boundaries, density, use and 
public facilities, and open space to be developed with each phase. Each phase shall be 
described and mapped as a unit of the project. Overall design of each unit shall be shown 
on the plan and through supporting graphic material. If approval for only one (1) phase 
of the Final Development Plan is requested by the applicant, the development schedule 
for the entire planned unit development must be submitted with the first Final 
Development Plan and may be amended upon filing approval for each subsequent phase. 

 
j. All common open space, at the election of the Village, shall be: 

23



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 19 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

 
i. Conveyed to a Village or public corporation, or conveyed to a not-for-profit 

corporation or entity established for the purpose of benefitting the owners and 
residents of the planned unit development or adjoining property owners or any one 
or more of them, in whole or in part. All lands conveyed shall be subject to the right 
of the grantee or grantees to enforce maintenance and improvement of the common 
open space; and/or 

 
ii. By Governed by a restrictive covenant describing the open space and its maintenance 

and improvement, running with the land for the benefit of residents of the planned 
unit development or adjoining property owners and/or both. 

 
iii. Permanent common open space equivalent to at least twenty five percent (25%) of 

the total development area in the planned unit development. 
 

k. Covenants: Final agreements, restrictions, provisions, or covenants governing the use, 
maintenance, and continue protection of the planned unit development and any of the 
common open space.  

 
3. Approval of Final Development Plan: After review of the Final Development Plan and 

supporting data for substantial conformity with the approved Preliminary Development 
Plan, the Zoning Administrator shall forward a recommendation to the Village Board of 
Trustees which shall approve, approve with modifications or conditions, or disapprove the 
final plan. Disapproval of the final plan shall include a written statement of the reasons 
thereof.  

 
a. Authorizing Ordinance: An ordinance granting approval of the Final Development Plans 

for the planned unit development shall be prepared and contain a specific description of 
the special use, along with any conditions and restrictions, bonuses and exceptions, or 
appropriate guarantees upon the establishment, location, and construction of the 
planned unit development as is deemed necessary for the protection of the public 
interest. The authorizing ordinance including all exhibits/documents and Final Plat of 
Subdivision, as set forth in Title 7 of the Lincolnshire Village Code, shall be recorded 
with the Lake County Recorder’s Office. 

 
b. Building Permits: No permits for construction of any structure or other improvements, 

shall take place until approval and recording of the Final Development Plan documents. 
 

G. Amendments to Planned Unit Developments: A planned unit development shall be developed 
only in strict adherence to the approved Final Development Plan and all supporting 
documentation, which shall be binding on the applicants, their successors, grantees and assigns. 
Any request to amend an approved planned unit development shall be subject to the following: 

 
1. Major Amendments: Shall require the submission of a new planned unit development plan 

and supporting data, and shall be subject to the requirements of Subsection E. Major 
amendments include but are not limited to the following: 
 
a. Increase in density;  
b. Increase in building height(s);  
c. Reduction in open space (publicly dedicated or private); 
d. More than a ten percent (10%) modification in proportion of housing types;  
e. Reduction in approved parking areas which reduces the total number of parking spaces 

below code requirements or modifications which require an increase in required 
parking;  

24



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 20 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

f. Additions  to authorized categories of land use(s);  
g. Modifications to existing Areas of Special Sign Control which do not impact sign 

dimensionswould alter the character of the development; and 
h. Change in the final governing agreements, provisions, or covenants. 
h.i. Material changes to on-site or off-site improvements, required by outside agencies, 

which affect whether the public benefit produced by the planned unit development 
outweighs the increased burden(s) on public services and infrastructure. 

 
2. Minor Amendments: Minor revisions to the approved planned unit development may be 

approved by the Architectural Review Board, as determined by the Zoning Administrator. 
Minor amendments are classified as any change not outlined as a Major Amendment, 
including but not limited to the following:  
 
a. Minor modifications to existing Areas of Special Sign Control; 
b. Changes to approved landscape plan(s) for the development; 
c. Increase of site amenities or changes to site furniture/lighting fixtures; 
d. Changes to exterior material(s) and colors, provided the replacement material(s); will 

not be of lessor quality from the approved material(s). 
 
H. Revocation: Where approval of the Final Development Plan for a planned unit development has 

been granted pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter, such approval shall become null and 
void unless construction of the planned unit development is substantially under way within 
three (3) years of the date of approval of the Final Development Plan. Revocation shall not occur 
before the applicant and/or developer receives written notification at least sixty (60) days prior 
to any such revocation. Extension in the building schedule may be granted by the Village Board 
of Trustees upon written request by the applicant/developer. Upon revocation, the parcel(s) of 
land shall conform to regulations and procedures of the underlying zoning district.          

 
6-14-13: APPEALS OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS 
 
A. Authority: Any person aggrieved shall appeal any order, requirement, decision or determination 

made under the regulations of this Title within 30 days from the date of the administrative 
decision. An application for appeal shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator, who shall 
schedule a public hearing no later than sixty (30) days after receipt of an application in 
accordance with this Section. 

 
B. Action: 
 

1. Action by the Zoning Administrator: The appeal application shall be forwarded to the Zoning 
Board which shall hear the appeal and forward its recommendation to the Board of Trustees. 

 
2. Action by the Zoning Board: The appeal application shall be forwarded to the Village Board 

of Trustees which shall hear the appeal. 
 

3 Action by the Architectural Review Board: The appeal application shall be forwarded to the 
Village Board of Trustees which shall hear the appeal. 

 
C. Public Hearing: A public hearing shall be conducted upon consideration of every appeal 

application. Notice of the hearing shall be posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 
 
D. Final Action:  The Village Board of Trustees shall act upon the decision of the Zoning Board 

and/or Architectural Review Board within not more than sixty (60) days from the last date of 
the advisory body votes on an application. The Village Board of Trustees shall render a final 
decision of all by ordinance. 

25



 
 

LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE 
TITLE 6: ZONING 
CHAPTER 14: ADMINISTRATION & ENFORCEMENT   

 

Page 21 of 21 
Revised XX/XX/XXXX 

 

 
6-14-14: FEES 
 
A. Application: Any application filed pursuant to this Title after the Pre-Application Meeting shall 

be accompanied by the application fees established in the Comprehensive Fee Schedule set forth 
in Chapter 15 of Title 1 of this Code. Such fees are non-refundable, regardless of whether the 
application was approved, denied, or withdrawn at any stage of the review process.   

 
B. Escrow: Every application filed pursuant to this Title shall be accompanied by the deposit of an 

additional amount for recoverable costs as provided in Title 1, Chapter 8 (Village Finances) of 
the Village Code, to be deposited in an application fee escrow.  No interest shall be payable on 
any such escrow. The Village shall from time to time, draw funds from the escrow account 
established for such application to pay such costs and shall transfer such funds to the 
appropriate Village accounts.  The Village shall maintain an accurate record of all such 
drawings. If the actual costs for the services exceed the amount of the initial deposit, the 
applicant shall replenish the escrow upon Village request. Remaining funds in the escrow at the 
completion of the application will be returned to the entity providing the initial fee escrow 
deposit. 

C.B.  
6-14-15: INSPECTIONS 
  
 : For the purpose of enforcing the provisions of this Zoning Code, the Director of Community 

and & Economic Development, or his/her designee, is hereby authorized to make inspections of 
all structures and premises to determine their compliance with the provisions of this Zoning 
Code. Such inspections shall be made subject to the following standards and conditions: 

 
A. An entry for the purpose of such inspection may take place if a complaint respecting said 

premises has been received by the Director of Community and & Economic Development, or 
his/her designee, and such complaint in the opinion of the Director of Community and & 
Economic Development provides reasonable grounds that a violation exists, or such inspection 
is undertaken as part of a regular inspection program whereby certain areas of the Village may 
be inspected from time to time in their entirety by the direction of the Village Board of Trustees. 

 
B. Such inspection shall be made by the Director of Community and & Economic Development, or 

his/her designee, upon the direction of the Village Board of Trustees. 
 
C. When inspecting a structure or premises, the Director of Community and & Economic 

Development or his/her designee shall furnish to the owner, occupant, or operator sufficient 
identification and information to enable the owner, occupant, or operator to determine both the 
inspector's identity as a representative of the Village and the purpose of the inspection. The 
Director of Community and & Economic Development may apply to any court of competent 
jurisdiction for a search warrant or other legal process for the purpose of securing entry to any 
building, structure, or premises if the owner, occupant, or operator shall refuse to grant entry.  

26

https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-1/code0115.pdf
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-1/code0115.pdf
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-1/code0108.pdf
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/sitemedia/documents/quick_links/village-code/title-1/code0108.pdf


 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 1 of 8 

ITEM SUMMARY 

Reviewing Body / Meeting Date: Committee of the Whole – July 27, 2020 

Subject:  FY2020 Mid-Year Budget and Goals Update 

Action Requested  
(Address – Petitioner): 

Receipt of Report regarding FY2020 Mid-Year Budget and Goals 
Update 

Prepared By: Brad Burke – Village Manager 
Ben Gilbertson – Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Economic Development Director 
Michael Peterson – Finance Director  
Brad Woodbury – Public Works Director 
Joseph Leonas – Police Chief 

Staff Recommendation: Receipt of report and direction to staff regarding FY2020 goal 
prioritization and potential FY2021 goal setting 

Budgeted Amount: N/A 

Actual Amount: N/A 

Level of Service Impact: N/A 

Meeting History: Committee of the Whole – April 13, 2020 
Committee of the Whole – May 11, 2020 
Special Committee of the Whole – June 29, 2020 

Tentative Meeting Schedule: N/A 

Reports / Documents Attached: Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Calendar 

 
Request Summary 
Staff requests the Village Board’s review of the updates to the fiscal year 2020 (“FY2020”) budget and 
goals. 
 
Mid-Year Budget Update 
June 30 represents the mid-year point in the Village of Lincolnshire’s fiscal year. Attached is copy of the 
Revenue and Expense Summary prepared for the month of June.  Please note the Revenue and Expense 
Summary reflects revenue reported on the “traditional cash basis”. This is a valid and good report in 
reviewing year over year comparisons to have a sense of where the Village is financially in a typical year.  
However, due to the financial crisis related to the COVID-19 pandemic, this summary is difficult to use as 
a resource to understand the true fiscal impact of the crisis because it is not tied to actual revenues 
received in the months when the revenue was realized.  Final numbers for key revenue (sales tax, state 
income tax, and use tax) is only available through April. With April being the first full month of the stay at 
home order, the Village can only ascertain the true impact of the stay at home order for March and April 
to date.   
 
Staff plans to provide a brief update for the Board regarding projections related to the impact of the 
pandemic at the meeting on Monday night. 
 
The following is an update of the status of progress toward 2020 Goals approved as part of the 2020 
Budget. 
 

27

https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video?format=raw&task=download&fid=2381
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video?format=raw&task=download&fid=2395
https://www.lincolnshireil.gov/government/about/agendas-minutes-packets-video?format=raw&task=download&fid=2443


 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 2 of 8 

 
 
 
 
Mid-Year Goals Update 
 
Administration / All Village Departments Goals 
• Vehicle Leasing Initiative: Complete investigation of leasing options for all Village vehicles in the areas 

of Administration, Community and Economic Development, Police, and Public Works. Work with 
departments to evaluate the program, identify if it is beneficial for the Village to pursue, and assist in 
fleet right-sizing. 
 
Status: In-progress. Staff has completed the leasing analysis for the police vehicles. A 
recommendation will be submitted to the Board by Q3 2020.  
 

• Technology Committee / Technology Strategic Plan: Implement intra-departmental committee to 
review existing technology and evaluate organizational needs to assist in creation of Technology 
Strategic Plan. The GovIT Consortium completed a 3-Year Strategic Plan in 2018. Work with Village’s 
information technology provider to update long-term technology plan to reflect both GovIT Consortium 
strategic plan priorities and incorporate Lincolnshire specific information technology initiatives into a 
single plan. 
 
Status: Not started. Completion of a long-term bandwidth solution is needed before the 
prospective committee can begin earnest work on other long-term IT projects. The 
bandwidth solution is scheduled to be in place by Q1/Q2 of 2021. 
 

• Update Performance Evaluation Tool: Work with all departments to review existing performance 
evaluation tool and update as necessary. Ensure performance evaluation document reflects the 
Lincolnshire Way set of values. Train all supervisors on performance evaluation best practices. 
 
Status: In-progress. While progress has been made, this project has been delayed due to 
COVID-19. Staff anticipates continuing this as a goal for FY2021.  
 

• Position Description Review/Update: Work with all departments to review existing position descriptions 
and update as necessary. Ensure position descriptions accurately reflect duties and responsibilities, as 
well as required skills, knowledge, and abilities.  
 
Status: Expected to be completed by Q4. Work is just starting at this time. 
 
 

• Village Hall and Public Works Facility Security Project: Improve both internal and external security at 
both Village Hall and Public Works Facility. Security improvements to provide keyless access to both 
facilities and ability to track access both during the work day and after hours. Improvements to 
provide enhanced building security for both employees and visitors. 
 
Status: In-progress. Recommendations for improvements are in place, but the project is on 
hold due to COVID-19-related revenue reductions. 
 

• Key Performance Indicators / Northern Illinois Benchmarking Cooperative: Evaluate key performance 
indicators currently included in budget and update each department’s performance measures as 
appropriate and of value for program assessment, management, and decision-making. Continue work 

28



 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 3 of 8 

with members of the Northern Illinois Benchmarking and University of Illinois at Chicago on year two 
of benchmarking Police Department services. Incorporate Public Works Department into benchmarking 
review during third year of programing. 

 
Status: In-progress. Completed year two of participation in the Northern Illinois 
Benchmarking Cooperative in March of this year.  The work of the cooperative was put on 
pause with the onset of the pandemic.  Status of the cooperative and work toward 
incorporating Public Works into the cooperative’s work is unknown at this time as many 
municipalities are evaluating this expense. 

 
• Develop Village of Lincolnshire Strategic Plan: Work with Village staff, elected officials, and 

stakeholders on creation of Lincolnshire strategic plan and update to Village mission statement. 
Facilitate planning process to explore community strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats to 
build an action plan and address long-term Village needs. 
 
Status: Not started. Sample RFPs have been gathered for a consultant to assist with 
developing the Strategic Plan; however, this project have been delayed due to COVID-19. 
 

• Document Management: Research, recommend, and implement formal document management system  
to integrate with new enterprise software system if cost effective. 
 
Status: In progress. Staff have researched a potential document management solution and 
received pricing options. As with other IT-related projects, completion of the long-term 
bandwidth solution is required before other IT projects can be completed. 

 
• Policy Review: Complete review of internal and external policies, update as necessary and make 

recommendation to Village Board for approval. Comprehensive policy update last occurred in 2012. 
 

Status: In-progress. This project was started by Administrative Intern Cascone. Work is 
expected to be brought to the Village Board later this year. 

 
• Administrative Adjudication: Research and provide a recommendation to the Village Board regarding 

the Village’s implementation of an administrative adjudication program, as well as a potential shared 
service opportunity with neighboring communities. 
 
Status: In-progress. Extensive research has been completed. Staff anticipates a 
recommendation will be submitted to the Board Q3 of 2020. 

 
Community & Economic Development Goals 
• Updated Comprehensive Plan: Using the assistance of planning consulting services, update the 

Village’s Comprehensive Plan. The update will focus on specific incorporated and unincorporated 
properties adjacent to Lincolnshire’s corporate boundaries, which have either experienced new 
development/redevelopment or are ripe for development in the next 10 years. Incorporate Economic 
Development Strategic Plan into the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Status: In progress. Although a consultant could not be secured due to COVID-19-related 
revenue reductions, staff have begun reviewing certain sections of the Comprehensive Plan 
that warrant updates and can be completed with in-house resources. Finalizing this updates 
is contemplated to occur in Q2 2021. 
 

29



 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 4 of 8 

• Updated Planning/Escrow Fees: Review of the Village’s planning and escrow fees, survey comparable 
communities, and develop recommendations for the Village Board’s consideration regarding 
appropriate fee amendments.  
 
Status: In progress. Staff presented recommendations to the Village Board in July 2020, 
with potential approval of the proposed changes to occur in late July/early August. 

 
• Comprehensive Review of Commercial, Corporate, and Industrial Site Conditions: Begin a phased 

review of commercial and office/industrial properties for compliance with approved landscape plans, 
site amenities, and overall site conditions. Contact property owners regarding non-compliances. This is 
intended to be a multi-year goal. 
 
Status: In progress. Staff have begun taking aerial footage of certain commercial properties 
and are reviewing this imagery against approved plans to note discrepancies. Staff will work 
with property owners to develop timelines to comply with any code violations or 
inconsistencies with approved plans.  

 
• Expanded “Express Permit” Program and Implementation of Electronic Plan Review: Given the success 

of online express permitting, explore opportunities to expand this program to other permits to enhance 
customer service and improve staff efficiency. Evaluate the cost and feasibility of electronic plan 
review software within the Village’s current enterprise resource planning (ERP) suite. 
 
Status: Complete. Staff implemented electronic plan review software as a result of COVID-
19 and being required to work remotely during Q2 2020. This software has allowed 
applicants to apply and submit documents for nearly all building projects online. Applicants 
can also pay fees in full online, thereby saving multiple trips to Village Hall.  

 
• Community Enhancement Program Improvements: Complete community enhancement program 

improvements pertaining to code enforcement and property maintenance standards including public 
education, standardized enforcement processing, and increasing the use of technology for field work. 
 
Status: In progress. Staff completed research on best practices to engage with changing 
demographics regarding the value of property maintenance. Staff also continue to increase 
use of enterprise software, documentation via photos, inspection notes, and integrated 
standard form letters for more efficient communication regarding common violations. 

 
• Continue Work on Update to Village Brand Identity: Pending Village Board direction, update print and 

electronic media as appropriate as part of initial roll out of new brand and marketing initiative. 
 
Status: In progress. A concerted effort was made in Q4 2019 and Q1/Q2 2020 to update 
commonly-used and external-facing documents to incorporate the new Village logo and 
brand identity. Staff have also updated the Village website and e-publications. Staff 
continue to update internal documents to ensure brand integrity and consistency. 

 
• Finalize Development of Zoning/Design-Oriented Regulations to ensure Residential Character/Integrity: 

Finalize bulk regulations of all Residential Zoning Districts to ensure Village vision is met and analyze 
the necessity of varying degrees of design-standards/review to support preservation of residential 
character. 
 
Status: In progress. Staff presented recommendations to the Village Board in November 
2019 and were directed to research reasonable allowances for existing homes and 

30



 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 5 of 8 

reevaluate the garage square footage credit. This project has been put on hold due to 
COVID-19 and competing priorities. 

 
• Increase Reporting on Economic Development Activities: Continue to execute on the priorities outlined 

in the Lincolnshire Economic Development Strategic Plan and improve reporting on activities and 
accomplishments. 
 
Status: In progress. Staff continue to share timely updates of economic development 
activity as they become known. Updates to the Economic Development Strategy Plan are 
being performed in tandem with the Comprehensive Plan update in an effort to integrate the 
two documents. 

 
Finance Department Goals 
• Grant Rating: Research and recommend solutions to improve Lincolnshire’s grant rating score to 

improve grant award potential. 
 
Status: In progress. Work has been completed with the Grant Accountability Transparency 
Unit (GATU) to improve Lincolnshire’s rating. An annual review of GATU’s findings related to 
Lincolnshire’s “specific conditions” will be necessary.  
 

• Vehicle & Equipment Inventory: Conduct a physical inventory of vehicles and equipment to confirm 
accuracy of existing database. 
 
Status: In progress. Finance conducted training with Public Works in Q3 2020 related to 
vehicles. Finance anticipates completing equipment data entry by Q3 2020.  

 
• 457 Plan Fees: Review plan design and fees; as well as, a joint municipal program to further reduce 

fees. 
 
Status: In progress. Lincolnshire and a few municipalities have completed research. Since 
COVID-19 took effect, two companies reduced their money market guaranteed rates. The 
municipalities agreed to put the project on hold while focusing more attention to COVID-19 
response priorities.  

 
• Debt Restructure/ Refinance: Refinance SSA Sedgebrook bonds if savings justify issuance. 

 
Status: In progress. On hold for the remainder of 2020 due to COVID-19. 
 

• Fraud Awareness Training: Prepare Fraud Awareness Training program and present to staff. 
Management and purchasing staff should understand the importance in preventing and detecting 
fraudulent disbursements. Enhance Lincolnshire’s opportunity to receive grant funds with Fraud 
Awareness Training compliance. 
 
Status: Not started. Scheduled to review before fiscal year end. 
 

• Local Government Debt Recovery (LGDR): Complete LGDR application process and deploy LGDR 
program for Lincolnshire’s police tickets. 
 
Status: Not started. Scheduled to review before fiscal year end. 

 

31



 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 6 of 8 

• Time and Attendance (aka Scheduling Software): Review possible alternative software to improve 
schedule reporting. The solution must interface with existing Paylocity payroll system. 
 
Status: In progress. Recommendation is finalized. Awaiting review by the Village Manager 
and possible implementation. 

 
Police Department Goals 
• Procedure Update: Address the impact of the new recreational cannabis law. Update Lincolnshire’s 

local cannabis ordinances and develop procedures for cannabis expungements. 
 
Status: Complete.  

 
• Records Data Management: Complete the police records data conversion from the Vernon Hills Police 

Department system to the Deerfield Police Department system.  
 
Status: In progress. Staff continues to work toward full data conversion.  

 
• Security Camera Registration Program: Design and implement a security camera registration program 

for both crime prevention and investigative purposes. The program will consist of documenting security 
cameras of businesses and homes in an effort to enhance access to security cameras and recorded 
footage. This program is designed to continue our partnership with the citizens of Lincolnshire to 
create a stronger, transparent, and trusting relationship by providing interactive crime prevention 
programs. 
 
Status: In progress. Staff continues to work with the Village’s GIS consultant to complete  
 

• Emergency Response Planning: Prepare a joint emergency response plan as part of ongoing efforts to 
ensure public safety and facilitate collaboration and coordination in the event of an emergency. 
Develop a tabletop emergency exercise to be used in future multi-jurisdictional training. 
 
Status: Not started. Due to COVID-19, this project was placed on hold. Staff anticipates 
continuing this as a goal for FY2021. 

 
Public Work Department Goals 
• Increase Public Works Social Media Presence: In accordance with communication policy, create and/or 

poste a minimum of five (5) videos related to Public Works Operations. Increase the amount of Public 
Works related items on Facebook, Twitter, and Village website. Create “Employee Spotlights” to be 
published in Manager’s Notes, Facebook, and Twitter. Investigate potential other social media outlets 
with Administrative Assistant. 
 
Status: In progress. Facebook videos have been created for snow plow operations as well as 
sandbag filling/distribution. 
 

• Cul-De-Sac Maintenance Plan/Standards: Create a plan/manual which details the design specifications 
and maintenance standards for all Village Cul-De-Sacs. If necessary, include provisions in the 
landscape maintenance contract to ensure Cul-De-Sacs are maintained to standards. Additionally, 
inventory all Cul-De-Sacs throughout the Village and identify which Cul-De-Sacs are in need of being 
brought up to standards. Once Cul-De-Sacs are identified, recommend a Capital Project for inclusion 
into the 10-Year CIP.  
 
Status: In progress. Updated maintenance specifications are being prepared for inclusion in 

32



 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 7 of 8 

the new landscape maintenance contract which will be put out for bid in Q3/Q4 2020. The 
10-Year Capital Improvement Program has been updated to include funding for enhancing 
cul-du-sacs once new standards are developed later this year. 
 

• Village Sign Replacement Initiatives: Take results from identified branding logo initiative and the 
village sign concepts RFP (Request for Proposals) and make recommendations to the Village Board on 
updates to all streets signs, street posts, parks signs, light posts, entryway signs, and other signage 
identified in the RFP (Request for Proposal). Include recommendations for all signage within 10-Year 
Capital Improvement Program. 
 
Status: In progress. Consultant is working on finalizing some alternatives for Village Board 
consideration. Implementation of signage updates have been put on hold due to budgetary 
constraints. 
 

• Complete Drainage Master Plan: Complete the Village’s Storm Water Master Plan which will allow the 
Village to proactively plan and prepare for current and future extreme rainfall events. The goals and 
outcomes of Master Plan should incorporate feedback from residents and business owners, assess the 
Village’s existing storm sewer capacity, identify deficiencies, create and prioritize projects for 
improvements, and potentially identify and evaluate funding sources for these future capital 
improvements. 
 
Status: In progress. Projects have been incorporated into the 10-Year Capital Improvement 
Program. Operating budget and funding alternatives (such as a storm water utility fee) are 
being researched for recommendation to the Village Board. 
 

• Long Range Pedestrian Improvement Plan: Update and/or create a Comprehensive Pedestrian Plan 
consisting of the following: Investigate needs, identify capital improvements and incorporate into 
plan, incorporate way-finding signage, lighting, seating, and landscaping elements to encourage 
pedestrian flow along Milwaukee Avenue and leading to Commercial Downtown area. 
 
Status: In progress. As this project was envisioned to coordinate with the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan update (which has been deferred to 2021), much of the planned work 
will be delayed to 2021. Objectives that have been completed include updating the Village’s 
mapping of current pedestrian facilities on via GIS. 
 

• Complete Work with Park Board on Possible Update to Recreation, Parks, Paths and Open Space 
Master Plan: Investigate needs, identify capital improvements and incorporate into plan. Incorporate 
way-finding signage, lighting, seating, and landscaping elements to encourage pedestrian flow along 
Milwaukee Avenue and into Commercial Downtown area. 
 
Status: In progress. Draft plan was presented to the Park Board and Village Board. Further 
refinement required by the Park Board before finalizing. 

 
Fiscal Year 2021 Budget 
Staff is working on preparing the budget for Fiscal Year 2021. A copy of the budget calendar was 
previously provided to the Board, and a copy is attached.  Village Manager guidance to Department 
Managers is to prepare the proposed 2021 Budget as traditionally done. However, all departments have 
been requested to identify cuts totaling 15% in departmental operating expenditures for the coming year. 
 
Staff Recommendation / Next Steps 

33



 

July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

2.21 

 

 
July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – 2.21 – Staff Memo – Page 8 of 8 

Staff requests feedback from the Village Board and direction on potential goals for fiscal year 2021 in 
preparation for next year’s budget. 
   

34



2021 BUDGET CALENDAR / APPROVAL SCHEDULE 
 

Date/Time Event Purpose 

Monday - 06/29/2020  
Special Committee of the 
Whole Mtg. 

Village Board Meeting Presentation and Update on 
Long-Term Capital Plan 

Friday - 07/17/2020 
 

Department Managers Begin Work: 
 

• Operating Budget Input BS&A 
 

• Capital Improvement 
Worksheets 
 

• Professional Services 
Agreements List 
 

• Performance 
Indicator/Metric Worksheets 
 

• Program Activity Summaries  
 

Operating Budget Development 

Deliverable: Personnel Change 
Requests to Village Manager 

Operating Budget Development 

Monday - 07/27/2020 
Regular Village Board Mtg. 
 

Village Board Meeting  Discussion Budget Guidelines / 
Goal Setting / Prioritization 

Village Board Meeting Continued Discussion of Financial 
Forecast 

Friday - 08/07/2020 
 

Deliverable: 2021 Departmental Goals 
and Objectives to Village Manager 

Goal/Objective Development 

Deliverable: Capital Improvement 
Program Worksheets to Village Manager 

Capital Improvement Program 
Development 

Deliverable: Letters Sent to 
Lincolnshire Organizations Regarding 
FY2021 Budget Process 

Operating Budget Development 

Deliverable: Budget Article Completed 
for Fall Newsletter 

Operating Budget Development 

Week of 08/10/2020 to 
08/17/2020 

Village Manager Reviews Capital 
Improvement Worksheets & Returns to 
Department Managers with Comments 

Capital Improvement Program 
Development 

Wednesday - 08/12/2020 Village Manager Obtain Questions / 
Comments from Staff – During Employee 
Council 

Obtain Comments / Requests 

Friday - 08/21/2020 Deliverable: Following Budget 
Components to Village Manager 

• Operating Budget Worksheets 
• Professional Services Agreement 

List 
• Performance Indicators/Metrics 
• Program Activity Summary 

Sheets due to Finance Director 

Operating Budget Development 

Weeks of 08/31/2020 & 
09/07/2020 

Department Manager meetings with 
Finance Director and Village Manager 

Review Operating and Capital 
Improvement Program Budget 
and Professional Services 
Agreement List 

Monday - 09/14/2020 
Committee of the Whole 
Mtg. 

Village Board Meeting Mayor & Board of Trustees 
Receive Comments/Suggestions 
from Organizations and 
Residents and Review Proposed 
FY2021 Goals 

35

file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Budget/2021/6_Capital_Improvement_Program/2021_Capital_Project_Request_Form.pdf
file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Budget/2021/6_Capital_Improvement_Program/2021_Capital_Project_Request_Form.pdf
file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Agreements/Agreements/Professional%20Service%20Agreements/Master_PSA_LIST.xls
file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Agreements/Agreements/Professional%20Service%20Agreements/Master_PSA_LIST.xls
file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Budget/2021/Performance%20Indicators_Staffing
file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Budget/2021/Performance%20Indicators_Staffing
file://vol-fs01/Data/Shared_Files/Budget/2021


 Village of Lincolnshire | 2021 Operating Budget & Capital Improvement Program  

Date/Time Event Purpose 

Friday - 09/25/2020 Deliverable: Department Managers 
Return Draft Budget with Comments to 
Finance 

Operating Budget Development 

Week of 09/28/2020 Budget Workbook Revisions Made Operating & Capital 
Improvement Program Budget 
Development 

Thursday - 10/15/2020 Deliverable: Budget Books Delivered to 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

Distribution of Proposed Budget 
 

Thursday - 10/15/2020 Public Copies of Budget Workbooks at 
the Village Hall, Library and Online 

Public Review of Budget 

Weeks of 10/19/2020 & 
10/26/2020 

Special Committee of the Whole Budget 
Meetings 

Mayor and Board of Trustees 
Review Budget 

Weeks of 11/02/2020 & 
11/09/2020 

Special Committee of the Whole Budget 
Meetings (As Needed) 

Mayor and Board of Trustees 
Review Budget 

Monday - 11/09/2020 
Committee of the Whole 
Mtg. 

Committee of the Whole Meeting Public Comment on Proposed 
Budget 

Week of 11/09/2020 Final Budget Revisions Made by Village 
Manager/Finance Director 

Operating & Capital 
Improvement Program Budget 
Development 

Week of11/09/2020  Department Managers Review/Update 
Year-End Projections and Recommend 
Project Carryover Amounts 

Operation & Capital 
Improvement Program Budget 
Development 

Wednesday - 11/18/2020 Deliverable: Final Budget delivered to 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

Distribution of final Budget 

Wednesday - 11/18/2020 Public Copies of Final Budget at the 
Village Hall, Library, and Online 

Public of Review Budget 

11/23/2020 
Regular Village Board Mtg. 

Village Board Meeting Adoption of FY 2021 Budget 

 

36



July 27, 2020 
Committee of the Whole 

Item 2.41 

July 27, 2020 – Committee of the Whole – Agenda Item - 2.41 – Staff Memo – Page 1 of 1 

ITEM SUMMARY 

Reviewing Body / Meeting Date: Committee of the Whole – July 27, 2020 

Subject:  Agreement Pertaining to the Regulation of Traffic and Parking at 

City Park 

Action Requested: Consideration of a Resolution approving an Agreement pertaining 

to the Regulation of Traffic and Parking at CityPark at 

Lincolnshire 

Prepared By: Joseph Leonas, Chief of Police 

Staff Recommendation: Consideration and Approval 

Budgeted Amount: N/A 

Actual Amount: N/A 

Level of Service Impact: N/A 

Meeting History: N/A 

Tentative Meeting Schedule: July 27, 2020 Committee of the Whole – Introduction 

August 10, 2020 Regular Village Board - Approval (Tentative) 

Reports / Documents Attached: 1) Proposed Resolution

2) Agreement pertaining to Regulation of Traffic and Parking

at CityPark at Lincolnshire

Background 

The ECD-Lincolnshire Association wishes to renew its agreement with the Village of Lincolnshire for the 

regulation of traffic and parking on the ECD-Lincolnshire Association property known as CityPark at 

Lincolnshire, located at 1400 Milwaukee Avenue (Hampton Inn), 215 Parkway Drive (Big Bowl), 235 

Parkway Drive (Wildfire), 255-295 Parkway Drive (retail complex), 300 Parkway (Regal Cinema) and 250 

Parkway Drive (office building).  The current agreement is set to expire on September 11, 2020.  The 

initial term of this new agreement is for five (5) years and will automatically renew for up to three (3) 

additional five-year terms unless cancelled by either party. 

This agreement allows the Police Department to enforce various traffic and parking regulations at CityPark 

that would be unenforceable absent this agreement.  

Staff Recommendation / Next Steps 

Staff recommends approval of the resolution, as presented. 

37



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT PERTAINING TO THE 
REGULATION OF TRAFFIC AND PARKING ON ECD-LINCOLNSHIRE 

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (CityPark of Lincolnshire) 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 65 ILCS, Section 5/1-1-7 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes authorizes 

municipalities to contract with school boards, hospitals, commercial and industrial facilities, and 
owners of shopping centers or apartment complexes in relation to the regulation of motor vehicle 
traffic and the promotion of safety on public highways; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 625 ILCS, Section 5/11-209 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 

authorizes municipalities to regulate the parking of automobiles and the traffic at such parking 
area; and 

 
WHEREAS, ECD-Lincolnshire Association, manages the property known as CityPark of 

Lincolnshire, located at 1400 Milwaukee Avenue (Hampton Inn), 215 Parkway Drive (Big Bowl), 
235 Parkway Drive (Wildfire), 255-295 Parkway Drive (retail complex), 300 Parkway Drive 
(Regal Cinema) and 250 Parkway Drive (office building) within the corporate limits of the Village 
of Lincolnshire; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ECD-Lincolnshire Association, has requested to renew the current 

traffic agreement that authorizes the Village of Lincolnshire and its Police Department to 
regulate traffic, parking and access to its property; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village of Lincolnshire as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT.  The Lincolnshire Village Board hereby 

approves the Agreement pertaining to the regulation of traffic and parking on ECD-Lincolnshire 
Association property. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
SO RESOLVED this ____th day of _____________, 2020, at Lincolnshire, Illinois. 

AYES:  

NAYS:   

ABSENT:  

APPROVED: 

 

             
       Elizabeth J. Brandt, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
     ___ 
 Barbara Mastandrea, Village Clerk 

38



39



40



41


	2020_07_27_COW_Agenda
	2.11_2020_07_27_COW_ZoningCode_AdminEnforcement_TextAmendments
	2020_07_27_COW_Mid-Year_Budget_Goals_Update
	2021_Budget_Calendar
	2.41_2020_07_27_COW_City Park Traffic Agreement
	2020_07_27_COW_City Park Traffic Agreement
	2020_07_27_ECD_Traffic Agreement
	ECD-Lincolnshire_Traffic_Agreement


	LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE: 
	necessary to conduct a full evaluation of the development proposal: 
	Certificate of Occupancy by the Villages Building Official: 
	LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE_2: 
	LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE_3: 
	LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE_4: 
	For the purpose of enforcing the provisions of this Zoning Code the Director of Community: 
	LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE CODE_5: 
	Friday 09252020: 
	Operating Budget Development_6: 
	Week of 09282020: 
	Budget Workbook Revisions Made: 
	th day of: 
	2020 at Lincolnshire Illinois: 
	Elizabeth J Brandt Mayor: 
	Dated at Lincolnshire Illinois this: 
	2020: 
	Mayor: 
	Village Clerk: 
	Return to Agenda: 


